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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

^The 746 acres 1 comprise Druid Hill Park, some of the lovliest 
wooded natural terrain in any urban setting in the country. 
Credit for first laying out the Rogers estate/' the largest por­ 
tion of the park, is given to Lloyd Nicholaar Rogers , grandson 
of Colonel Nicholas Rogers, who acquired the property in 1709. 
He is said to have "laid it out in the best style of English 
landscape gardening" ,2 planting the area so that there would be 
a harmony of color and natural beauty.

In I860, when the City of Baltimore purchasecKthe Rogers estate 
and neighboring land for the park, Howard Daniels was employed 
as the landscape architect and George A. Frederick as, the ar­ 
chitect for the various park structures. John H.B.^tatrobe, 
one of the Park Commissioners, helped design the gateways to 
the park and the alterations . to the Mansion, while the details 
of the work were left to Frederick! 3"

The park was financed largely through revenue produced by a 
system of public horse railways. Several of these routes ended 
at the entrances to the park at Madison Avenue, Eutaw Place, 
Mount Royal Avenue, and Druid Hill Avenue. Other accesses to 
the park such as Cedar Avenue, Greenspring Avenue, Parkdale 
Drive, Liberty Heights Avenue, and Gwynns Falls Parkway were 
originally designed "exits."

One gate, the Main Entrance, is still in existence (1972) at 
Madison Avenue. This was erected, between 1867-1868, of Nova 
Scotia freestone, by George A. Frederick, after a design of 
John H.B. Latrobe. It led to the "Grand Avenue" and thence to 
the Promenade which was adorned with rows of urns , overflowing 
with flowers and lined with benches. At the end of this mall 
stood the Rotunda, the Moorish Bandstand, long since removed, 
as were the urns .

Many miles of carriage and bridle paths still traverse the wood­ 
ed park land. Well-known areas include the Prospect and Tem­ 
pest Hills, famous for their vistas, Philosopher's 
pin's Back, Reservoir Hill and the Dell. A drive, 
half miles in length, circles the Druid Lake the

, .....13197
Baltimore City Survey, 1970. ^1 MATION&f 

2J. Thomas Scharf, History of Baltimore City and CountV iffiaaaTtrc 
land from the Earliest Period to the Present Day . . 4V "
(Philadelphia, 1881), 274. /PTn^ "  "'!__'_j_ -^

JEdith Rossiter Bevan, "Druid Hill, Country Seat of the Rogers 
and Buchanan Families," Mary1and His torical Magazine, vol. 44, 
(September 1949) , 191. r

(See Continuation Sheet)
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7. DESCRIPTION continued

which is formed by a dam, designated an Engineering Landmark by 
the American Society of Engineers in 1971. Another lake in the 
park is the Boat Lake, formerly used for boating, sailing model 
boats and winter ice-skating. Now, there are no boats on the 
lake and it is surrounde£H5y a high chain-link fence, designed to 
protect a flock of swans and other animals which form the zoolog­ 
ical collection. There is, additionally, Spring Lake and a group 
of lakes known as the Three Sisters. Spring Lake has been con­ 
verted from a duck lake to an area where mountaiiTgoats and small 
monkeys are displayed on a man-made island, surrounded by a moat. 
A few ducks may still be seen (1972) on the Three Sisters. There 
are also a number of natural springs which feed the lakes and are 
equipped with drinking fountains for the public.

When trfie park was first opened (1860's) a small steam-driven 
train met passengers at Druid Hill Avenue and transported them 
into the park. It was equipped with a dummy engine, the boiler 
covered with a passenger car body, so as not to scare the horses 
it encountered. The train was replaced by a fleet of phaetons, 
but the stations along the route continued in use for many years. 
They were known as The Chinese Station, which was the southern 
terminal, the Orem's Way Station and Council Grove Station locat­ 
ed elsewhere along the route. Of these, only a part of the Chi­ 
nese Station remains, lacking its ornate Chinese roofline; the 
Council Grove Station has become a picnic shelter, and Orem's 
Way Station has been moved, but remains relatively unspoiled.

In the center of the park is the Mansion Ho#se. This was^^ 
home of the Rogers family, erected in 1801 by Colonel Nfcho

:he
Tcholas

Rogers after a fire destroyed his townhouse. There had been at 
least two earlier mansions on the estate, one the home of Dr. 
George Buchanan, called "Auchentorolie", built about 1720, and 
the other, a house built by Colonel Rogers, c. 1783, which was 
destroyed by lightning. The new mansion was designed in the 
early Federal1-style and it was intended that there should be 
wings flanking it. A photograph of the house as it actually ap­ 
peared, without the wings, is to be found between pages 192 and 
193 of the Maryland Historical Magazine, vol. 44. The author of 
the article, Edith Rossiter Bevans, states that the house was 
similar in style to Homewood (B-4, a National Historic Landmark 
and National Register of Historic Places property)the Charles 
Carroll, Jr. home, built several years afterward. When Baltimore 
City purchased the land and the house for a park, Howard Daniels 
determined to convert the structure into a public pavilion and 
he surrounded it with broad porches, twenty feet wide, construc­ 
ted an arcade for refreshment shops in the basement, and raised 
the roof, adding wide bracketed overhangs and an ornate

(1 of 5 Continuation Sheets)
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Next to the Mansion HouseNs^gfck^^Hie Maryland House, a frame 
structure which has been variously described as English Tudor and 
Swiss Chalet: style. It was the State's display building at the 
1876 U.S. Centennial Fair in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, and, 
after the fair, was re-erected on this site. It houses a museum 
of natural history, including rocks, Indian artifacts, stuffed 
animals and birds and botanical specimens. None of these were 
the originals displayed in Philadelphia, for that exhibit was 
lost when it was loaned to the New Orleans Cotton Exposition in 
1884.

The little octagonal pavilion in the center of the zoo was erect­ 
ed for the members of the Park Board to tie up their horses while 
they attended meetings in the Mansion House. It contained a cast 
iron feeding trough in its center and stalls for 11 horses, and 
has become the peanut stand and a snack bar (1972).

The Conservatory, on the western edge of the park was originally 
called the "Palm House". It was completed in 1888 and stocked 
with many types of domestic and exotic plants. It is constructed 
of glass panes divided by wooden members, forming a high, vaulted 
structure, capable of accomodating the tall palm trees. A modern 
building is the Reptile House, formerly the Aquarium, and before 
that a pumping station for the High Service Reservoir, which has 
now been filled and is an athletic field. The Reptile House was 
built about 1938 of brown brick, decorated with a band of diamond 
shaped tiles under the eaves and a green tile roof.

There are two small cemeteries in the park. One which the Balti­ 
more City government never acquired is the St. Paul's Lutheran 
Cemetery, the other is the Rogers family cemetery which is locat­ 
ed behind the Mansion House.

A number of statues have been erected within the park. Most 
widely known are the Columbus statue and the George Washington 
statue. The Columbus statue at the northern end of Druid Lake 
is the scene of a yearly wreatht/laying ceremony on Columbus Day. 
It was sculpted by Achille Caroessa and given to Baltimore City 
by the Italians of Baltimore in 1892. The Washington statue is 
of interest because it formerly graced the facade of the
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Druid Hill Park in Baltimore, Central Park in New York City, 
and Fairmont Park in Philadelphia, represent the vanguard of 
city parks in the United States. Established before the Civil 
War these three parks were precursors of the development of 
urban parks resulting from the Columbian Exposition of 1893 and 
the contemporaneous "city beautiful" movement.

*Druid Hill Park holds an unusual place in American urban parks 
history through the unique method by which it was financed: a 
city tax on the gross receipts from the privately franchised 
street railways. Instituted in 1858 the street railways were 
one of the first methods of urbax mass transit in Baltimore. 
The Mayor of Baltimore, Thomas *Swann C1805-1883), insisted that 
twenty per cent of the gross revenue from the railways go to a 
special fund set aside for the purchase of city parks. Within 
two years of operation, the street railway tax had provided 
enough funds to open Druid Hill Park.

In the summer of 1860 the Baltimore Park Commission, chaired by 
Mayor Swann, purchased an estate. "Druid Hill," at the north­ 
western city limits from the Rogers family who had lived on the 
tract since the seventeenth century. One of the family owners 
of the tract, Lloyd Nicholas Rogers, had landscapped the ground 
grouping trees according to the effects produced by their 
autumnal colors.

When Druid Hill became public property, the Baltimore Park Com­ 
missioners' landscape architect, Howard Daniels, made few major 
alterations to the planting on the Rogers' estate except for 
the elimination of an extensive pear orchard. Daniels job con­ 
sisted of designing and improving roads and pathways. The Com­ 
mission chose Daniels because of his landscaping experience en­ 
hanced by a tour he made of Europe studying landscape architec­ 
ture. In the 1840's he designed the Montgomery County Court­ 
house in Dayton, Ohio. A decade later he was in New York City 
where he won fourth prize in the Central Park competition for a 
layout plan for Central Park, won by Frederick Law Olmstead. 
After completing his work at Druid Hill Park he designed the 
plans for the grounds of Vassar College at Poughkeepsie, New
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7. DESCRIPTION continued

"Washington Buildings" of Noah Walker^a*i T Company,^ a dry-goods 
firm. It was sculpted by Edward S. Bartholomew and given by its 
owner to be placed on a pedestal provided by Enoch Pratt.

Twentieth-century visitors to the park find many areas for recre­ 
ation and relaxation. There are ten picnic groves and shelters, 
facilities for tennis, baseball, lacrosse, archery, swimming and 
an excellent zoological exhibit, as well as a Children's Zoo.

Francis F. Beirne, Baltimore 
(New York, 1957),59.

A Picture History, 1858-1958,

8. SIGNIFICANCE continued 

York.

To complement Daniels' landscap 
hired George A. Frederick, the a1 
Hall, to design a series of park 
ing nineteenth century architects, 
triple arch at the Madison Street ent

!ommiss loners 
Baltimore City 

e of the outstand-
an Etruscan 

to the park, a group
of thirteen picnic shelters, the conservatory, an octagonal 
stable and a series of shelters at the stops of the street rail­ 
way system through the park. His designs for the park extend 
from 1864 to the 1890's.
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